
CIBOLA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

Jack Moleres                Robert Armijo     Robert Windhorst 

           Chairman                                 1st Vice Chairman      2nd Vice Chairman 

   

           Daniel Torrez                Martha Garcia  

          Commissioner                  Commissioner 
 

Regular Meeting 

April 27, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

Cibola County Commission Chamber 

700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance  

4. Prayer 

5. Approval of Agenda 

 

6. Consent Agenda - Action May Be Taken 

a. Meeting Minutes March 23, 2017 Regular Meeting   

b. Meeting Minutes April 6, 2017 Special Meeting   

 

7. Reports 

a. Monthly Sheriff’s Department Activity Report 

b. Monthly Detention Report 

a) PREA 

c. Monthly Road Department Report 

 

8. Presentation 

a. Future Foundations Highlights - Sherri Kachirisky 

b. Big Brothers Big Sisters – Sarah Piano 

 

9. Public Comment 

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment at this time regarding any agenda item only. 

Your Comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests 

more information. The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the agenda 

forward in a prompt yet efficient manner. 
 

10. New Business-Action May Be Taken 

a. Consideration of Amended Joint Powers Agreement Reorganizing the Cibola Regional 

Communications Center 

b. Consideration of Amended DWI Policies 

c. Consideration of MOU between Cibola County and the City of Grants re:  Zuni Mountains 

Quartz Hill Project 

d. Consideration of Mutual Assistance Agreement Between Western New Mexico Correctional 

Facility and Cibola County Detention Center  

e. Consideration of Range Use Agreement with Western New Mexico Correctional Facility 

f. Consideration of Intergovernmental Agreement Between Doña Ana County  

g. Consideration of Agreement for Inmate Confinement with the County of Santa Fe 

h. Consideration of Agreement for Inmate Confinement with Air Force  



i. New Mexico Department of Transportation (NMDOT) Possible Maintenance and Upkeep 

Request  

 

11. Manager’s Report 
 

12. Comments 

a. Staff 

b. Commissioners 

 

13. Executive Session 

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) (2) & (8) the following matter may be discussed in closed session:  

a) Personnel – Michael Dodds 

b) Personnel – Gary Porter 

c) Real Estate Property – Real Property Lease to the Administrative Office of the Courts 

d) Real Estate Property – Casa Lease 

 

-  Motion and roll call vote to go into Executive Session for the state reasons 

 -  Board meets in closed session 

 -  Motion and vote to go back into regular session 

 -  Summary of items discussed in closed session 

-  Motion and roll call vote that matters discussed in closed session were limited to those 

specified in Motion. For closure and that no final action was taken, pursuant to the authority in 

§ 10-15-1 NMSA 1978 

 

14. Action Item 

a. Personnel – Michael Dodds 

b. Personnel – Gary Porter  

c. Real Estate Property – Real Property Lease to the Administrative Office of the Courts 

d. Real Estate Property – Casa Lease 

 

15. Announcements 

The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday, May 25, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

immediately following the Board of Finance Meeting in the Cibola County Commission Chamber 

Room, 700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 
 

16. Adjournment 
 

 

“If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 

interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting 

please contact the Cibola County Commission Chamber 700 E. Roosevelt Ave. Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, 

phone (505)287-9431 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.  Public documents, 

including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats.  Please contact the Cibola 

County Administration if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed.” 

 

 



                                                               Cibola County Commission 
Regular Meeting 

                                                                         March 23, 2017 
 

The Cibola County Commission held a Regular Meeting on Thursday March 23, 2017 at 5:00 pm 
in the Cibola County Commission Chamber 
 
 
 

Elected Officials Present Staff                                                   
 Jack Moleres, Chairman                                                           Tony Boyd, County Manager 
 Robert Armijo, 1st Vice Chairman                                               Joseph Sanders, Finance Director 
 Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice Chairman                                       Michelle E. Dominguez, County Clerk       
 Daniel Torrez, Commissioner                                     Heather Paintin, Recording/Filing Clerk 

 Martha Garcia, Commissioner     
 
 
1.  Public Hearing for Comment on; 
           a. Updated LEDA Ordinance- Jill Andrews from Fencelake town of less than 50 people.  
Current language disqualifies them from current economic development opportunities such as 
a farmers market, community heritage museum, archive and preforming arts venue.  Passing 
this language change would bring them in alignment with LEDA at a state level and allow the 
community to take full advantage of the heritage and economic development set forth by the 
state.  Will be voted on tonight under 11f. 
 
2.  Call to Order 
 
      Chairman Jack Moleres called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
3.  Roll Call 
 
      Chairman Jack Moleres does roll call 5-0 in attendance 
        
4.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
     Led by Armijo and Recited by all 
 
5.  Prayer 
       
     Commissioner Daniel Torrez led us in prayer 
 
6. Approval of Agenda 
 



     Motion to approve the agenda with the following changes requested by Manager Boyd: 
move 11e to under 11ic, 11d to 9c, and table Presentation A and add to the next regular 
meeting agenda made by Commissioner Garcia, seconded by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, 5-0 
Affirmative. 
 
 
 7. Consent Agenda – Action May Be Taken 
      a. Meeting Minutes February 23, 2017 Regular Meeting 
 

Motion to approve Minutes with changes to N 1, Motion to NOT purchase- Land Next to 
La Mesa Mall, 4-0 affirmative and also relook at N 2,3,4 changes need to be made to 5-0 
affirmative or 0-5 negative made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, seconded by 
Commissioner Torrez 5-0 Affirmative 

   
      b. Meeting Minutes March 2, 2017 Special Meeting 
 
            Motion to approve March 2, 2017 Special Meeting made by 1st Vice Chairman  
            Armijo, seconded by Commissioner Torrez 5-0 Affirmative 
 
       
 
 8. Reports 
 
     a.   Monthly Sheriff’s Department Activity Report. 
 

Sheriff Tony Mace said that the Detective handled 4 CYFD referrals and 1 suicide case 
closed. They worked with the Grants Police Department on a burglary in progress and 
arrested 3 suspects at the scene while recovering the stolen property and returning it to 
the owner.  Assisted Grants agency on a case of sexual penetration of a minor.  
Participated in a year-long narcotics case on High Street making several arrests.  Also, 
worked with Grants, Milan and State Police in a warrant round up and took 12 people 
into custody. Had to search and rescue last month, one gentleman with serious injuries 
out of the Malpais and the other was a family stuck in the mud near McGaffey which they 
got them out safely.  

 
 
 
      b. Monthly Detention Report. 
  
          Adrianne Jaramillo stated that the current count to 187 in custody. 
 
                a)PREA – For the Month of February they had 0 PREA Reports.  
                                  
 



           
Adrianne Jaramillo said the billing for February was a total of $157,020.00 to agencies 
that pay them for their beds. Revenue collected for February 2017 was $225,712.61. 
Juvenile Care paid for February 2017 was $13,891.12.  Commissioner Garcia requested 
customer service and better communication on bonding.  Adrianne Jaramillo will get a 
document together with directions and have it available at the detention center.        

 
     c. Monthly Road Department Report. 
 
          Gary Porter said that for the Month of February 2017 they have been blading roads and  
          Working on special projects along with helping city of Grants move and haul equipment.  
 
     d. County Complex Remodel Expense Report 
 

Manager Tony Boyd said they are about done with the project.  Scheduled tomorrow, 
weather permitting, to do weather proofing to some of the tile.  Next week placing final 
tile outside and capping on the roof.  Still working on the heading issues and they are 
going to install an additional pump to circulate hot water so all locations have hot water.  
About 985 done with project and at the same amount from last month with no extra 
cost for what they are doing now, it is including in the cost.   

 

 9.  Presentation 

             a. Homestake Mining After School Program at Future Foundations- tabled until next 

month’s regular meeting.  

 

                  Manager Boyd said they are going to be donating some funds to the program, 

however the funds will be contingent on getting the rest of the money from program. 

 

             b. Cibola Recycle Single Use Plastic Bag Ordinance Example- Hollis Fleischer 

 

                  Hollis is the co- coordinator for Recycle Cibola.  Presenting the idea of a purposed 

ordinance from Silvercity and would like to work with the City of Grants, Village of Milan and 

Cibola County to consider Single-Use Plastic Bag Ordinance.  They are in the process of getting 

recycle bins at Wal-Mart to make it more convenient for people to utilize and recycle.  They do 

a lot of community outreach and education, mostly to children.  Have helped provide recycling 

containers in parks, athletic areas and business to get more people recycling.  They came 

tonight to ask for the commission to consider a similar ordinance to clean up the county and 

get more people recycling.  It would be important to reach out to retailers ahead of time and 

get their ideas and hear any concerns and this would help with all their efforts they have made 

to clean up the county.  They would be happy to help with the ground work to get this started.     

                   



 

 10. Public Comment  

 

        No public comment 

       

 

 

   11.  New Business – Action May Be Taken    

                 a. Consideration of Resolution 17-21, NMDOT 2016 Annual Public Entity Hardship Sale 

 

                      Motion to approve made by Commissioner Garcia, seconded by 1st Vice Chairman 

                      Armijo, 5-0 Affirmative.  

     

                 b. Consideration of Resolution 17-22, Fiscal Year 2017 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT No. 3 

 

Motion to approve made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, seconded by Commissioner 

Torrez, 5-0 Affirmative. 

 

c. Consideration of Resolution 17-23, Authorizing and Approving Submission of a           

Completed Application for Financial Assistance and Project Approval to the New 

Mexico Finance Authority. 

 

Motion to approve made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, seconded by 2nd Vice 

Chairman Windhorst, 5-0 Affirmative.  

 

d. Consideration of Resolution 17-24, Distribution of PILT Route 66 Solar Energy   

Center LLC 

 

Motion to approve at 52%/48% for first 50 megawatts and 50%/50% for the next 

10 megawatts made by Commissioner Torrez, seconded by 2nd Vice Chairman 

Windhorst, 5-5 Affirmative.  

Announcement of special meeting on April 6, 2017 at 5pm 

 

                 e.   Pueblo of Laguna Council Intergovernmental Agreement 

 

                     Motion to table made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, seconded by Commissioner  

                     Torrez, 5-0 Affirmative. 

 



 

                  f. Consideration of Approval of Updated LEDA Ordinance  

 

Motion made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, seconded Commissioner Garcia, 5-0 

Affirmative. This will go into effect 30 days after it is recorded with County Clerk. 

                       

               

g. Milan Police Department Merge with Cibola Regional Communications Center   

(CRCC)  

                        Waiting on Milan to have a special meeting and also the CRCC board meeting 

                         

 

                  h. School Resource Officer- for Discussion Only 

a. Teri Jaramillo reported they are down an SRO at Grants High school.  

 

i. Consideration of Contract 

a. Global 

 

Motion made to continue one more month by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, second 

by Commissioner Torrez, 5-0 Affirmative. Will be discussed in further detail 

during closed session and special meeting April 6, 2017. 

 

b. Intergovernmental Agreement with Rio Arriba county for the housing of 

Inmates 

 

Motion made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, seconded by Commissioner Torrez,  

5-0 Affirmative. 

 

 

 

     12.  Manager’s Report 

 

a. House Memorial 74- Bataan Memorial will be held on Friday April 7, 2017 at 2:30 

p.m. to 3:30 p.m., at the Convention center located on the corner of High and 

Iron Street. 

 



b. Thank You Letter from Sherriff’s Office for “Shop with a Cop Program”- Sherriff 

Tony Mace presented the Commission with a picture of all the children in the 

program as a token of appreciation for the support given.  

 

     13. Comments 

                a. Staff 

                  

Detention center is working on several programs to clean up trash, an area on highway 

117 and on Route 66 by Petro area.  Several resources to reduce inmate population.  

Holding a meeting next month.  He has identified 3 grants that are available that total 

over $1 million dollars that help with programs reduce revisits.  NMSU is assisting in 

writing the grants.  The discovery of these grants was found through an inmate who 

wrote a letter about a lawsuit that took place around the government helping with 

programs.   

 

                b. Commissioners 

 

1st Vice Chairman Armijo asked Mr. Middleton about the issue with the radio system 

and issues with communication. 

     

      14. Executive Session 

At 8:30pm motion made by 1st Vice Chairman to go into Executive Session, seconded by 

2nd Vice Chairman Windhorst, 5-0 Affirmative.  

 

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) (7)(8) the following matter may be discussed in closed 

session:  

a) Settlement Agreement- Pueblo of Acoma 

b) Real Property Lease- Smith’s 

c) Real Property Lease- CASA 

 

- Motion and roll call vote to go into Executive Session for the state reasons 

- Board meets in closed session 

- Motion and vote to go back into regular session 

- Summary of items discussed in closed session 

- Motion and roll call vote that matters discussed in closed session were limited to 

those specific in Motion.  For closure and that no final action was taken, 

pursuant to the authority in § 10-15-1 NMSA 1978 

 



At 9:04pm motion made by Commissioner Torrez to start back into regular session, 

seconded by 2nd Vice Chairman Windhorst, 4-0 Affirmative.  

 

      15. Action Items 

 Consideration of Settlement Agreement- Pueblo of Acoma 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Garcia, seconded by 2nd Vice Chairman Windhorst, 4-0 

Affirmative. 

 

      16. Announcements  

 

There will be a special meeting held on Thursday April 6, 2017 at 5 p.m. in the Cibola 

County Commission Chamber Room, 700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 

 

The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday April 27, 2017 at  

             5:00 p.m. immediately following the Board of Finance Meeting in the Cibola County 

             Commission Chamber Room, 700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 

 

       17. Adjournment 

       

Motion to adjourn meeting at 9:06 p.m. made by 1st Vice Chairman Armijo, second by 

2nd Vice Chairman Windhorst 4-0 Affirmative.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                               Cibola County Commission 
Special Meeting 

Thursday April 6, 2017 
 

The Cibola County Commission held a Special Meeting on Thursday April 6, 2017 at 5:00 pm in 
the Cibola County Commission Room 
 
 

Elected Officials Present Staff 

Jack Moleres, Chairman                                                                      Tony Boyd, County Manager                                                           
Robert Windhorst 2nd Vice Chairman                Joseph Sanders, Financial Analyst    
Martha Garcia, Commissioner                                                           Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk      
Daniel Torrez, Commissioner                                                              Natalie Grine Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
 

1. Public Hearing for Comment on: 
a.  Ordinance No.2017-03 Authorizing the issuance and sale of Cibola County, New Mexico 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Route 66 Solar Energy Center, LLC Project), Series 
2017 in the Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount of $75,000,000.  

 
         Rony Pynes asked if the actual amount is $75,000,000 or if fees are extra. 
          Manager Boyd replied the fees are included. 
 
         Eileen Yarbrough stated that she is in support of the Route 66 Solar Energy Center Project. 
           
         Manager Tony Boyd mentioned he is very pleased with this project and is in support of this project.   
         Cibola County will benefit from it with the revenue coming in. 
 

Robert Windhorst stated that he was very impressed with NextEra, and it will be a good thing for 
Cibola County. 

 

 
2. CALL TO ORDER  
 
Chairman Moleres called the meeting to Order at 5:16 pm.  
 
3. ROLL CALL 
  
Chairman Moleres does roll call- 4-5 Commissioners in attendance. 
Commissioner Armijo and was absent, and Commissioner Torrez arriving at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
     Led by all 



 
5. Prayer  
     Prayer led by Commissioner Martha Garcia  
 
 6. Approval of Agenda 
 
      Motion to approve Agenda made by Commissioner Garcia, second by 2nd Vice Chairman 
      Windhorst, 3-0 affirmative.  
    
 
  7. Action Items 
 

a. Consideration and approval of Ordinance No. 2017-03 Authorizing the issuance  and 
sale of Cibola County, New Mexico Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Route 66 Solar 
Energy Center, LLC Project), Series 2017 in the Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount of 
$75,000.000 

 
           Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2017-03 made by 2nd Vice Chairman 
           Windhorst, second by Commissioner Garcia 3-0 affirmative. 
 

b. Consideration of Resolution 17-25, Authorizing and Approving Submission of a 
Completed Application for Financial Assistance and Project Approval to the New Mexico 
Finance Authority. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution 17-25, made by 2nd Vice Chairman Windhorst, second by       
Commissioner Garcia 3-0 affirmative. 
 

 
c. Consideration of Contract 

a. Global Contract 
 

Motion to end contract with Global Correctional Group made by Commissioner Torrez, 
second by 2nd Vice Chairman Windhorst, 4-0 affirmative.      

         
 
  8. Announcements 
 
      The next Regular Commission Meeting to be help on Thursday, April 27, 2017    
      Immediately following the Board of Finance Meeting in the County Convention Room.  
 
   9. Adjournment 
 
       Motion to adjourn meeting made by Commissioner Torrez, second by 2nd Vice  
       Chairman Windhorst at 5:47 p.m.               













































Bookings Releases Male Female

270 277 170 36 Total 206

217 240  181 40 Total 222

183 35 218

Housing Collected in March 2017

Federal Transports Collected in March 2017

Medical Reimbursements & Fees

Total

From State to General fundCo. Correctional  Fac GRT. $33,189.40 March 2017 For February 2017

MARCH 2017 COMMISSION REPORT

Bookings For March 2017 Daily Average Inmate Count for March 2017

Bookings For February 2017 Daily Average Inmate Count for February 2017

Highest facility count for the month of March 2017

$170,693.25

$5,257.38

$6,584.20

All Other $47.53 Inmate Fees, Commissions, Other Revenue

Revenue Collected for March 2017

Rent paid for March 2017 $9,821.00

New Mexico State - Cop

$215,771.76

Paying March 2017 March 2017 Non Paying

 Juvenile Care paid for 

March 2017 $13,891.12

Juvenile's are currently held at the 

McKinley County Detention Center.Correction Fees

Non Paying

# of 

Inmates

Average # of 

Billing Days Billing Days Rate TotalCounty, City & Federal

# of 

Inmates

Average # of 

Billing Days

Billing 

Days Rate Total

APPO 42 14 588 57.00 $25,365.00City of Grants 80 4.5 361 65.00 $20,117.50

Magistrate Court 184 9.3 1,725 57.00 $92,093.00Village of Milan 8 6.2 50 65.00 $2,957.50

District Court 100 1934 1,934 57.00 $101,612.00United States Marshals 55 27.2 1,496 60.00 $89,760.00

Totals 326 1957.3 4,247 $219,070.00Valencia County 75.00

Rio Arriba County 23 11.4 263 75.00 $19,350.00

Socorro County 75.00

Mora County 4 31 124 75.00 $9,300.00

Catron County 75.00

Prisoner Transportation 

Services 34 1.9 66 75.00 $75.00

Kirtland Air Force Base 1 5 5 75.00 $375.00

San Miguel County 75.00

Pueblo of Laguna 1 1 1 75.00 $75.00

Totals 210 89.2 2370 $142,310.00

Security Transport Services 4 1 4 75.00 $300.00



3/1/17 0:00 3/31/17 23:59 31 DAYS $5,425.00 Rate Per Day: $108.00

JUVENILE DETENTION LISTING MARCH 2017

FROM DATE TO DATE Man - Days Total Total Man - Days: 54

Total Due: $9,051.81

3/18/17 4:34 3/21/17 11:33 2 DAYS & 30.97 HOURS $575.77

3/7/17 11:53 3/7/17 14:50 2.95 HOURS $21.51

3/14/17 16:30 3/31/17 23:59 17 DAYS & 7.48 HOURS $3,029.53

July $14,959.49

August $17,091.09

Year To Date

Month Amount

November $6,429.03

December $20,855.68

September $11,086.29

October $19,691.57

March $9,051.81

April

January $27,875.03

February $13,891.12

$140,931.11

May 

June

Total To Date:



Cibola County Detention Center 

1)

Mar-17 270 Released 277

2)

Mar-17 Male 170 Female 36

3) For the month of MARCH, how many allegations of inmate-on-inmate NONCONSENSUAL SEXUAL ACTS were reported?

Mar-17 0

4) Of the allegations reported in item 3, how many were-

a. March 0

b. March 0

c. March 0

d. March 0

5) 

Mar-17 0

6)

a. March 0

b. March 0

c. March 0

d. March 0

7)

Mar-17 0

8)

a. March 0

b. March 0

c. March 0

d. March 0

9) 

Mar-17 0

10)

a. March 0

b. March 0

c. March 0

d. March 0

11)

Mar-17 2

Unsubstantiated

Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) MONTHLY Reporting Data 

How many persons under the supervion of your facility were-

CONFINED/BOOKED/RELEASED in the month of April?

For the month of MARCH what was the average daily population of your confinement facility?

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of MARCH how many allegations of inmate-on-inmate ABUSIVE SEXUAL CONTACT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 5, how many were-

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of MARCH how many allegations of inmate-on-inmate SEXUAL HARRASSMENT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 7, how many were-

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of MARCH how many allegations of STAFF SEXUAL MISCONDUCT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 9, how many were-

Substantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of MARCH, how many allegations of STAFF SEXUAL HARASSEMENT were reported?



12)

a. March 0

b. March 0

c. March 0

d. March 2

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

Of the allegations reported in item 11, how many were-

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated



To:
Fr:
Re: 

Road

C6

C34

C49

C33

C32

C47

C35

C42

C4

C48A

C1

C23A

C17

C6

C48A

C47

C29

C33

C19A

Back Country Byway 36.067

Piedra Lumbre Rd. 4.991

Timberlake Rd.

Cantina Homesites Rd. - Patching.

Regular Maintenance

Blade & Shape

Special Projects

Plano Colorado - Fix cattle guards.

Seboyeta-Bibo-Moquino Roads - Blade shoulders, patching.

          128.800 

15.125

Zuni Trail 10.000

Zuni Canyon Rd. (Grants)

Mt. Taylor Addition - Install culverts.

Total Miles

Marquez Rd. - Shoulder work.

Mesa Ridge Rd. 7.148

Fence Lake Community Roads 9.064

Miles

Pine Hill Rd.

4.834

Description

Timberlake Rd. - Cleaning cattle guards.

Candy Kitchen Rd. - Repair culverts, install culvert, cleaning cattle guards & culverts.

15.427

16.400

Candy Kitchen Rd.

Mesa Ridge Rd. - Cleaning cattle guards.

Nursery Rd. - Patching.

Wednesday, April 5, 2017

Tony Boyd - County Manager
Gary Porter - Public Works Director
Monthly Report:3/1/17 -3/31/17 (March)  

9.744

Seboyeta-Bibo-Moquino Roads

A

u

d

Cibola County Road Dept.
700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone    505-285 3656 Fax

 

      



C4

C2

C8

C49

C58

C30

C57

Hauling off blocks from old Alco building.

Transport vac truck to Albuquerque for the City of Grants.

Piedra Lumbre Rd. - Work on roadway, haul base course.

Rio Puerco Rd. - Working on washouts.

Encinal Rd. - Patching.

Zuni Canyon Rd. - Patching.
San Rafael Village Roads - Haul millings & base course, cleaning curb & gutters, cutting trees.

E/W Circle Dr. - Patching.

Bluewater South - Putting up signs.

Transport excavator for the City of Grants.

      



 

UNIT # DEPT. UNIT NO. Mid Mo. Gal. Mid Mo. $ End Mo. Gal. End Mo. $ Other Gal. Other $ Total Gal. Total $ Total Miles Cost/Mile MPG UNIT # 

118 Road G-18461 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 118

127 Road G-18473 37.000 $79.38 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 37.000 $79.38 3 26.46 0.08 127

128 Road G-18464 70.300 $150.40 18.600 $39.91 0.000 $0.00 88.900 $190.31 667 0.29 7.50 128

129 Road G-02084 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 129

130 Road G-15638 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 130

131 Road G-29800 0.000 $0.00 20.000 $44.49 0.000 $0.00 20.000 $44.49 394 0.11 19.70 131

132 Road G-29901 10.000 $21.16 37.000 $81.12 0.000 $0.00 47.000 $102.28 585 0.17 12.45 132

133 Road G-23696 32.000 $68.66 15.000 $32.19 0.000 $0.00 47.000 $100.85 670 0.15 14.26 133

134 Road G-23697 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 134

135 Road G-39980 0.000 $0.00 19.000 $42.27 0.000 $0.00 19.000 $42.27 194 0.22 10.21 135

136 Road G-39988 29.500 $63.29 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 29.500 $63.29 514 0.12 17.42 136

137 Road G-50237 0.000 $0.00 24.100 $53.40 0.000 $0.00 24.100 $53.40 233 0.23 9.67 137

139 Road G-57384 79.400 $170.34 60.100 $130.46 0.000 $0.00 139.500 $300.80 2,401 0.13 17.21 139

140 Road G-57619 15.200 $32.42 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 15.200 $32.42 413 0.08 27.17 140

141 Road G-57618 0.000 $0.00 8.000 $17.17 0.000 $0.00 8.000 $17.17 125 0.14 15.63 141

146 Road 146 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 146 Welder

147 Road G-66164 10.800 $23.17 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 10.800 $23.17 165 0.14 15.28 147

148 Road G-66165 0.000 $0.00 10.000 $21.46 0.000 $0.00 10.000 $21.46 250 0.09 25.00 148

150 Road G-70482 98.000 $209.87 97.600 $211.15 0.000 $0.00 195.600 $421.02 3,277 0.13 16.75 150

151 Road G-78718 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 151

152 Road G-64239 10.900 $23.38 24.400 $52.86 0.000 $0.00 35.300 $76.24 513 0.15 14.53 152

153 Road G-86952 43.000 $92.26 47.100 $103.52 0.000 $0.00 90.100 $195.78 2,047 0.10 22.72 153

154 Road G-86953 61.400 $131.74 66.100 $144.14 0.000 $0.00 127.500 $275.88 3,355 0.08 26.31 154

155 Road G-86954 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 82 0.00 #DIV/0! 155

157 Road G-91750 40.700 $87.33 58.500 $127.46 0.000 $0.00 99.200 $214.79 1,822 0.12 18.37 157

202 Road G-18484 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 202

209 Road G-18476 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 209

211 Road G-18795 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 211

212 Road G-30550 131.400 $291.20 157.500 $350.67 0.000 $0.00 288.900 $641.87 1,480 0.43 5.12 212

213 Road G-30549 22.100 $48.96 40.800 $90.42 0.000 $0.00 62.900 $139.38 250 0.56 3.97 213

214 Road G-38441 0.000 $0.00 86.100 $191.79 0.000 $0.00 86.100 $191.79 320 0.60 3.72 214

215 Road G-67372 48.300 $107.05 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 48.300 $107.05 329 0.33 6.81 215

216 Road G-37371 204.800 $451.55 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 204.800 $451.55 1,290 0.35 6.30 216

217 Road G-70782 137.800 $305.36 193.500 $430.43 0.000 $0.00 331.300 $735.79 2,040 0.36 6.16 217

218 Road 218 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 218

219 Road 219 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 219

220 Road 220 72.000 $174.68 121.100 $295.22 0.000 $0.00 193.100 $469.90 895 0.53 4.63 220

Richard Cerno

Water Truck

New Mack Transport

Water Truck

Dump Truck

John Hobbs

Dump Truck

Mack

Dump Truck

Dump Truck

Dump Truck

Dump Truck

MONTHLY FUEL USAGE 

 March 2017

Fuel Truck

Bernie Martinez

Service Truck

Welding Truck

Welder

Gary Porter

International

Distributor



305 Road 305 0.000 $0.00 12.300 $27.26 0.000 $0.00 12.300 $27.26 18 1.51 1.46 305

306 Road 306 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 306

307 Road 307 170.700 $378.27 90.000 $199.45 0.000 $0.00 260.700 $577.72 73 7.91 0.28 307

308 Road 308 80.400 $178.20 33.300 $73.81 0.000 $0.00 113.700 $252.01 65 3.88 0.57 308

309 Road 309 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 309

UNIT # DEPT. UNIT NO. Mid MO. Gal. Mid Mo. $ End Mo. Gal. End Mo. $ Other Gal. Other $ Total Gal. Total $ Total miles Cost/Mile MPG UNIT # 

310 Road 310 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 310

311 Road 311 0.000 $0.00 33.000 $74.02 0.000 $0.00 33.000 $74.02 7 10.57 0.21 311

312 Road 312 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 312

313 Road 313 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! 313

314 Road 314 0.000 $0.00 33.600 $74.46 0.000 $0.00 33.600 $74.46 9 8.27 0.27 314

416 Road 416 180.600 $400.23 270.400 $603.90 0.000 $0.00 451.000 $1,004.13 86 11.68 0.19 416

417 Road 417 124.300 $275.47 84.100 $187.67 0.000 $0.00 208.400 463.140 70 6.62 0.34 417

418 Road 418 79.200 $175.52 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 79.200 175.520 37 4.74 0.47 418

501 Road 501 0.000 $0.00 60.900 $134.95 0.000 $0.00 60.900 $134.95 17 7.94 0.28 501

G-34769 Road G-34769 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! G-34769

Road x-gas 0.000 $0.00 5.000 $15.16 0.000 $0.00 5.000 $15.16 0 #DIV/0! 0.00 x-gas

Road x-diesel 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 0.000 $0.00 N/U #VALUE! #VALUE! x-diesel

Backhoe

Volvo Blade

Roller

CAT Blade

New Roller

Bobcat

Sweeper

Loader

Dozer

Chip Spreader

Mower

Backhoe

Volvo Blade

New Loader



VEHICLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. TOTAL COST

G-18461 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$                     

G-18473 26.46 0.08 3 37.000 79.38$ 

G-18464 0.29 7.50 667 88.900 190.31$ 

G-02084 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-15638 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-29800 0.11 19.70 394 20.000 44.49$ 

G-29091 0.17 12.45 585 47.000 102.28$ 

G-23696 0.15 14.26 670 47.000 100.85$ 

G-23697 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-39980 0.22 10.21 194 19.000 42.27$ 

G-39988 0.12 17.42 514 29.500 63.29$ 

G-57384 0.13 17.21 2,401 139.500 300.80$ 

G-57619 0.08 27.17 413 15.200 32.42$ 

G-57618 0.14 15.63 125 8.000 17.17$ 

146 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-66164 0.14 15.28 N/U 10.800 23.17$ 

G-66165 0.09 25.00 N/U 10.000 21.46$ 

G-70482 0.13 16.75 3,277 195.600 421.02$ 

G-78718 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-64239 0.15 14.53 513 35.300 76.24$ 

G-86952 0.10 22.72 2,047 90.100 195.78$ 

G-86953 0.08 26.31 3,355 127.500 275.88$ 

G-86954 0.00 #DIV/0! 82 0.000 -$ 

G-91750 0.12 18.37 1,822 99.200 214.79$ 

G-34769 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

503 7.94 0.28 17 60.900 134.95$ 

Extra card #DIV/0! 0.00 0 5.000 15.16$ 

UNLEADED

FUEL REPORT - CIBOLA COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT  

March 2017

Cibola County Road Dept.
515 W.  High Street

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone       505-287-3656 Fax

 



1085.500 2,351.71$ TOTAL GAS



VEHICLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. TOTAL COST

G-50237 0.23 9.67 233 24.100 53.40$ 

G-18484 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-18476 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-18795 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-30550 0.43 5.12 1,480 288.900 641.87$ 

G-30549 0.56 3.97 250 62.900 139.38$ 

G-38441 0.60 3.72 320 86.100 191.79$ 

G-67372 0.33 6.81 329 48.300 107.05$ 

G-67371 0.35 6.30 1,290 204.800 451.55$ 

G-70782 0.36 6.16 2,040 331.300 735.79$               

Distributor #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$                     

Water Truck #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$                     

New Transport 0.53 4.63 895 193.100 469.90$               

305 1.51 1.46 18 12.300 27.26$ 

306 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

307 7.91 0.28 73 260.700 577.72$ 

308 3.88 0.57 65 113.700 252.01$ 

309 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

310 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

311 10.57 0.21 7 33.000 74.02$ 

312 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

313 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

314 8.27 0.27 9 33.600 74.46$ 

416 11.68 0.19 86 451.000 1,004.13$ 

417 6.62 0.34 70 208.400 463.14$ 

418 4.74 0.47 37 79.200 175.52$ 

501 7.94 0.28 17 60.900 134.95$ 

Extra card #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

2492.300 5,573.94$     

*N/U = NOT USED      

TOTAL DIESEL

DIESEL FUEL



 

Highlights January – March 2017 

“Working Together for a Safer, Healthier, More Skilled Cibola County” 

• After School Programs –After School Program started on August 11th, we currently 

have 202 students registered with a daily attendance of about 90 - 105. 

Programs consist of Art, Cooking, Fitness & sports, Gardening, Earth Club and 

homework help/Tutoring. 

• Bouncing Baby Boogie Class for Babies and Parents every Wednesday at 10:00 am.   

• Facilitation of a Youth Coalition in partnership with Rotary (Approximately 16 High 

School Students).  

 *Projects: Raising money to sponsor a Kenyan child, mentoring younger youth, 

community clean-ups  

• Facilitation of the Healthy Kids Healthy Communities to address Health and Fitness for 

youth in Cibola County----Farmer’s Market, Legacy Trail Development, Walk-n-Roll to 

School, working with G/CCS to implement School Wellness Policy 

o We have implemented the Eat Smart to Play Hard and 5-2-1-O programs at 

Milan, San Rafael, and Bluewater elementary schools with the hopes of 

expanding to the remaining elementary schools in the district.  

o We have recently kicked off the 5-2-1-O Challenge at Mesa View Elementary 

• The Farmers Market: We are currently in the planning stages for the upcoming market 

season. We will be planning many community events to coincide with the market and 

will be accepting SNAP benefits as well as WIC checks this season.  

• Juvenile Community Corrections: The JCC program focuses on working with children 

who are involved with the juvenile probation system. We teach them life skills such as 

money management, organization, communication, education, and much more 

depending on the needs of the youth. We have had 4 clients graduate successfully and 

are currently serving 5 clients with hopes to expand.  

• Hosting community blood drives. 

• Currently hosting the 5th round of a Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program for youth 

• Community Garden in partnership with the Grants Recreation 

o We have added a new hoop house and expanded our raised garden beds. The 

students of the after-school program are currently planning the crops for this 

year. They have started seedlings to transplant to the garden when the weather 

stabilizes. We have also partnered with an NMSU class who will be working on 



testing the soil and helping to improve the growing conditions of our beds. They 

will also be helping us grow native heirloom seeds.   

• Facilitated the Interagency Alliance meetings focus on obesity prevention for youth 
and families and substance abuse prevention. State Innovation Model input sessions 
have been held and the information provided to the DOH 

• OSAP: We have recently been awarded the Substance Abuse Prevention grant that had 
previously been run by the County. We are working on getting a Substance Abuse 
Preventionist to coordinate the grant and look forward to making a meaningful impact 
on our community.  

 



 

No 

Documentation 

for this Item 



Page 1 of 8 
 

 
 AMENDED 

  JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT REORGANIZING 
 THE CIBOLA REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 
 

This joint powers agreement (JPA) entered into effective the _________ day of 
__________________ , 2017, by and among Cibola County, New Mexico, a political 
subdivision of the State of New Mexico (hereinafter referred to as "County"), the City of 
Grants, New Mexico, a municipal corporation of the State of New Mexico, (hereinafter 
referred to as "City"), the Village of Milan, New Mexico, a municipal corporation of the 
State of New Mexico, (hereinafter referred to as "Village"), (collectively the "Parties" or 
individually a “Party” and is made pursuant to the provisions of 11-1-1 et. seq. NMSA 
1978. 

WHEREAS, 11-1-1 et. seq. NMSA 1978 (the JPA Act) provides that any county 
and any municipality may enter into agreements to cooperate and assist each other in 
exercising and performing any power, authority, duty or function legally invested in 
them; 

WHEREAS, currently the County, the Village and the City jointly fund the Cibola 
Regional Communications Center (CRCC) for the purpose of receiving citizen 
emergency telephone calls and then so notifying their appropriate police, other 
emergency personnel pursuant to an existing joint powers agreement; 

  WHEREAS, the Parties hereto wish to amend this existing joint powers 
agreement (“Amended JPA”) as set forth below; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the JPA Act, the County, the City and the Village wish to 
jointly exercise the power to so operate this regional center as permitted and allowed 
and further desire to enter into this JPA to so exercise this common power;  

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize that in order to better implement Federal 
Homeland Security laws, regulations and requirements as well as improve operational 
efficiency and manage the daily operations, that the CRCC should be under the  
authority as well as be the responsibility of one jurisdiction, the fiscal agent, which is 
currently the County, who shall have control and supervision of all CRCC personnel in 
accordance with County personnel policies as well as the expenditure of all CRCC 
funds as appropriated by the Parties; 

WHEREAS, the Parties also recognize that in order to better implement Federal 
Homeland Security laws, Regulations and requirements as well as improve operational 
efficiency that the CRCC should work in conjunction with the County’s Emergency 
Management Coordinator who is a County employee;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the aforementioned statutes, the Parties hereunder may 



Page 2 of 8 
 

appoint an Advisory Board ("Board") to assist in providing advice and counsel to the 
County and the CRCC Director; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to continue operation of the CRCC and redefine 
control of its administration and performance, as well as the financing of such system, 
and reconstitute the Board (as outlined below, section 5) for advisory purposes of the 
CRCC as set forth herein on behalf of the County, the City and the Village. 

NOW, THEREFORE, all Parties having resolved to do so in meetings duly 
assembled and as required and in consideration of the foregoing and of the cooperation 
to be had between the Parties and the performance of the promises contained herein, 
the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1) Purpose.  The purpose of this JPA is to establish the procedures and 
responsibilities for the joint and cooperative undertaking of the Parties in 
establishing and operating the CRCC for the Parties in their respective 
geographic areas and any surrounding area as they wish to include in 
accordance with applicable laws. 

2) Commencement, Duration, Termination and Dissolution.  This agreement shall 
commence on the date of approval by the New Mexico Secretary of Finance and 
Administration following its adoption and approval by the Parties herein, and shall 
continue for an indefinite period of time.  However, at the end of each fiscal year, 
each of the Parties shall review this agreement and may determine whether they 
wish to continue in its operation.  Any Party may terminate its participation in this 
agreement at any time by giving at least a 180-day notice of such intent to 
terminate to the other Parties.  However, no Party may terminate its participation 
in this agreement if the effect of said termination would violate the provisions of 
agreements with third parties or cause or constitute a breach of any contract with 
third parties. In the event of termination by one of the three original Parties to this 
agreement, the remaining Parties may continue their participation and operation 
of the CRCC under this JPA.  In the event of any such termination by one of the 
three original parties, any property originally belonging to such terminating party 
then provided and used by the CRCC shall remain the property of the CRCC. 

3) Amendments.  Any amendments to this agreement shall be effective only upon 
the mutual execution of an amending document and approval by the New Mexico 
Department of Finance and Administration. 

4) Name.  The project established by this agreement may be known as the Cibola 
Regional Communications Center or CRCC. 

5) Board.  There is hereby re-affirmed and continued the Board consisting of seven 
(7) members whose function shall be to carry out the purposes of this 
Agreement, as the same may be delegated to the CRCC in this agreement.  The 



 
 3 of 8 

board members shall consist of the following individuals: the Cibola County 
Sheriff, the President of the Cibola Rural and Municipal Fire Association, the 
City’s Chief of Police, the City’s Fire Chief, the Village’s Chief of Police, the 
Village’s Fire Chief and one (1) local citizen as appointed by the other six (6) 
members (who shall generally serve a two (2) year term but shall serve subject to 
the pleasure of the board and subject to renewal). Any member (except the 
citizen member) may designate an alternate from time to time.  Pursuant to 11-1-
6 NMSA 1978, members serving on the CRCC shall not be individually liable for 
any actions, inactions, or omissions of the CRCC, except to the extent as allowed 
by law. Decisions of the Board shall be by majority vote with a quorum of the 
Members present.  A quorum shall be fifty-one percent (51%) of the members as 
currently then appointed. 

6) Delegation of Authority for Operation, Regulation Control and Maintenance of 
Property, Facilities and Programs.  The Parties hereby delegate to the County’s 
CRCC Director Supervision over the CRCC with the authority to control, 
maintain, manage, operate and regulate the communication system of the CRCC 
described herein, whether individually or jointly owned, as well as all related 
equipment and facilities. The Emergency Management Coordinator, a county 
employee, shall report to the County for purposes of operating, maintaining and 
regulating the communication system of the CRCC, especially with respect to the 
part CRCC plays with respect to implementing the County’s and the Parties’ 
Homeland Security functions. The CRCC Director shall report to the County for 
purposes of implementing the personnel policy for CRCC staff and employees 
including hiring, termination and discipline of any employees and/or staff. If the 
fiscal agent in conjunction with the Board determines that a PSAP (Public Safety 
Answering Point) manager is necessary in order to properly implement CRCC 
functions that individual will be an “at will” employee and report directly to the 
CRCC Director.   

7) Interest of the Parties in Property, Facilities and Equipment.  The furnishings, 
fixtures, equipment, capital improvements, and systems (including leased 
property) acquired by the CRCC shall be deemed the property of the Parties.  
Each Party shall own an undivided interest in the equipment and facilities as will 
so be acquired. Upon complete dissolution all equipment and facilities so 
acquired and not otherwise required to be returned or assigned shall be allocated 
among the Parties on the basis of the proportion to their total respective 
contributions as have been made pursuant to paragraph 8 hereof (except if one 
of the three original parties has withdrawn pursuant to Paragraph 2 hereof, such 
party’s interest shall be limited to that property acquired or received prior to its 
withdrawal). 

8) Financing and Budget.  The County, the City, and the Village shall in the first 
year of operation under this Amended JPA each initially finance this joint and 
cooperative undertaking by the appropriation by each Party of funds for the 



 
 4 of 8 

purpose of meeting the funding requirements of the Parties for the budgeted 
operating expense and in accordance with the following allocation: 

 City = 33% of the total 
 County = 33% of the total 
 Village = 33% of the total 
 

This allocation will only take place for the remaining cost total to efficiently run 
the Cibola Regional Communications Center after the Gross Receipt Tax 
contribution is collected for the fiscal year. 

Such payments by the City and the Village to the County (as fiscal agent) shall 
be made in quarterly (4) installments based on actual monthly expenses. Future 
appropriations by the County, the City, and the Village, for this purpose, shall be 
made in accordance with a percentage of calls in each of the Party’s jurisdiction 
and Party usage, and where appropriate budget and percentages to be agreed 
upon annually at a meeting of the Board called for such purpose on or about May 
15 preceding the affected fiscal year and upon proper notice. In no event shall 
the Parties be assessed any additional fees thereafter in any fiscal year without 
the consent of all of the Parties. 

9) Additional Sources of Funding.  Each Party's financial obligation may be financed 
from any legal source, including by excise, sales, or other taxation allowed by law 
or by in-kind contributions. The CRCC is specifically authorized to receive and 
accept donations, gifts, contributions, or grants from any source, provided that 
they are used solely for permitted purposes under the terms of this JPA. In 
addition, the CRCC is specifically authorized to cooperate with any of the Parties, 
or any other agencies or officers of the State of New Mexico, or agencies or 
officers of the United States for authorizations from or through those agencies or 
officers for such additional funding. 

10) Fiscal Agent.  The Parties agree that the fiscal agent and lead agency for the 
CRCC shall be the County.  However, the Parties may at their discretion at duly 
held meetings immediately prior to the start of each fiscal year, on July 1, agree 
by majority of the parties to appoint a different fiscal agent and lead agency.  The 
Fiscal Agent shall be responsible for accounting and administration of all funds 
necessary to operate the CRCC and shall do so such as to provide for the strict 
accountability of all receipts and disbursements.  As lead agency, the fiscal agent 
shall monitor the actions of the CRCC. The fiscal agent, if the County, shall also 
be responsible for supervising all the personnel of the CRCC and its employees 
and staff, including taking all actions necessary to implement the County’s 
Personnel Policy.  The Parties shall have the right to take corrective action at any 
time, including terminating this Amended JPA in accordance with the termination 
provisions, as herein provided, if they believe that the CRCC is not property 
performing its duties. 



 
 5 of 8 

11) CRCC Director: The County’s CRCC Director shall be responsible for the day to 
day operations of the CRCC, particularly as they relate to implementing Federal, 
regulations and requirements. He or she shall report to the County and the Board 
with respect to implementing all County Personnel Policies including the hiring, 
termination, disciplining and/or promotions of any CRCC employees and staff.  
The Emergency Management Coordinator shall assist with maintaining all 
Homeland Security Laws as well as radio licensing and maintenance of 
communications.  In the event of a major incident the Emergency Management 
Coordinator shall handle all operational plans for the incident emergency 
command center.  

12)  Board. The function of the Board is to 1) annually review and approve the 
amount of funding as well as the funding formula for each of the Parties for the 
upcoming fiscal year; 2) annually review and approve the budget for the 
upcoming fiscal year; and 3) meet as often as it determines necessary to provide 
advice and counsel to the County and the CRCC Director regarding the proper 
functioning of the CRCC so that it may better serve the residents of the Parties, 
the entities and organizations represented by the Board members  and meet its 
obligations under Federal Homeland Security laws, regulations and 
requirements.  The board will meet every other month or as deemed necessary.  

13) Board Meetings. The Board shall in its sole discretion meet as often as it deems 
necessary however, it shall meet as least once a year on or before May 30th, to 
review and approve the funding amount, formula and the budget.  

14) Reserve Funds.  The County is authorized to acquire and maintain reserve funds 
for CRCC operations. Upon dissolution of the CRCC, any funds remaining and 
unobligated shall be divided among the Parties in the proportion to their total 
respective contributions theretofore. 

15) Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the CRCC shall be July 1st to June 30th of the 
following year. The CRCC shall prepare and submit its proposed budget, 
together with its proposed operating plan, to the Parties not later than May 5th of 
each year. The operating plan shall be sufficiently detailed as to the nature and 
extent of any major new management decisions, proposed capital projects or 
expenditures, and personnel hiring. All Parties to this Agreement must approve 
the budget inclusive of the parties’ contributions for that budget year.  Upon 
approval of the budget by the parties, the CRCC shall not be required to seek 
subsequent approval of expenditures from these agencies. The CRCC will then 
provide the Parties with reports detailing its activities and expenditures on a 
quarterly basis. 

16) Method of Operation.  The Parties agree that, in the interest of efficiency and in 
order to avoid unnecessary redundancies and make optimal use of established 
fiscal, personnel, insurance and other arrangements, the CRCC and its 



 
 6 of 8 

departments shall operate utilizing the County’s personnel policies, fiscal 
management and auditing, retirement and health and medical insurance, and 
casualty and personal liability insurance. All costs incurred by the County on 
behalf of the CRCC shall be paid from the CRCC budget. The approved CRCC 
budget shall be administered as a part of the County's budget, and the County 
shall be responsible for performing all required audits and reporting to 
appropriate agencies for the fiscal year as approved. 

17) CRCC Management. Within the foregoing constraints, the control, management, 
supervision, operation, and regulation of the system and facilities shall be under 
the administration of the County and the CRCC Director. No new obligations to 
engage in the management, control, maintenance, or supervision of property, 
facilities or programs may be delegated to the CRCC by a Party, or assumed by 
the CRCC, without the approval of all Parties to this Agreement. 

18) Agents and Employees.  The CRCC shall, under County supervision and with 
County approval, in accordance with its carrying out the purposes, duties and 
functions as set forth herein, have the authority to contract with organizations 
providing services, funding or facilities needed to carry out the purposes of this 
Agreement. All contracts with such organizations shall be approved, in advance, 
by the County with, where advisable, the advice and consent of the Board. The 
County shall be responsible for all personnel issues. The CRCC staff shall report 
CRCC Director. The CRCC Director shall report to the County.  The CRCC 
Director shall report to the County Emergency Manager for FCC and Homeland 
Security regulations.  The hiring, dismissal and management of CRCC 
employees shall be under the purview of the fiscal agent, pursuant to applicable 
policies and procedures of the County. 

19) Prior Agreements. This agreement, while intended to memorialize prior 
arrangements, shall supersede any and all prior agreements by and among the 
Parties with respect to the Grants-Cibola County Joint Powers Communication 
Center, and all such prior agreements, arrangements and understandings are 
hereby rescinded and rendered null and void hereafter. This Agreement contains 
the entire agreement between the Parties concerning the joint and cooperative 
establishment, management, and operation of the Cibola Regional 
Communications Center (CRCC). 

20) Notice.   Notice as need be given to the Parties shall be by regular mail mailed at 
least five (5) days in advance of a meeting or action to the Parties at their 
respective addresses which are as follows: County: County Manager, Cibola 
County, 700 E Roosevelt Suite 50, Grants, New Mexico 87020.  City: City 
Manager, City of Grants, P. O. Box 879, Grants, New Mexico 87020. Village: 
Village Manager, Village of Milan, P. O. Box 2727, Milan, New Mexico  87021. 

21) Liability.  Each of the Parties shall be solely responsible for fiscal or other 



 
 7 of 8 

sanctions, penalties or fines occasioned as a result of its own violation or alleged 
violation of requirements applicable to the performance of this JPA.  Each Party 
shall be liable for its acts or failure to act in accordance with this JPA, subject to 
the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act and other 
applicable law. 

22) Headings.  The section headings are for convenience of reference only and shall 
not otherwise affect the meaning hereof. 

23) Amendment. This JPA shall not be altered, changed or amended except by 
instrument in writing executed by the Parties and approved by the Department of 
Finance and Administration. 

24) Appropriations.   Performance of this JPA is contingent upon sufficient authority 
and appropriations granted by the New Mexico State Legislature to the extent so 
required. 

25) Governing Law.  This JPA shall be governed by and construed according to the 
law of the State of New Mexico. 

26) Department of Finance and Administration Approval.  This JPA shall be of no 
force and effect until approved in writing by the Department of Finance and 
Administration for the State of New Mexico.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement on 
behalf of the Parties hereto, to be effective as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

 
 
 

By: _____________________________________ 
      Jack Moleres 
      Chairman 

 
      Date: _____________________________  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
County Clerk 
 
 



 
 8 of 8 

CITY OF GRANTS, NEW MEXICO 
 
 

By: _____________________________________ 
      Martin Hicks 
      Mayor 

 
      Date: _____________________________  

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

VILLAGE OF MILAN, NEW MEXICO 
 
 

By: _____________________________________ 
      George Knotts 
      Mayor 
      Date: _____________________________  

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Village Clerk 
 

Approved: 
 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
 

By: _____________________________________ 
 

      Date: _____________________________  



Cibola County DWI Program 
 

Cibola County Commission  
700 E. Roosevelt 

Suite 40 

Grants, NM 87020 
Josephine Vaisa, 

Coordinator 
 (505) 285-2585  

 (505) 287-5581 

 

Jack Moleres, Chairman                      

Robert Armijo, 1st Vice Chair  

Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice Chair  

Danny Torrez, Commissioner                 

Martha Garcia,  Commissioner              County Manager 

  Tony Boyd 

 

POLICY:  FILE MANAGEMENT  

 

1. Complete and accurate records must be kept on each client.   

2. Files need to routinely be reviewed to insure they reflect court records and 

your records. 

3. Monthly reports need to be submitted to the Coordinator to include active 

cases, closed cases, affidavits filed, those on bench warrant status, clients in 

custody, what clients have outstanding balances, the amount that is 

outstanding and the time frame they have been outstanding.   

4. Clients at a minimum will have at least one office interview with their 

Compliance Officer each month.  For those clients that only check in monthly 

it is the responsibility of the Compliance Officer to make sure you and the 

client have a scheduled day to meet.   

5. Files need to be kept in order and legible.  All fee’s need to be documented as 

they are accumulated, to include monthly fees, SCRAM fees and UA fees.     

6. Coordinator will be designing an internal audit check list to be utilized with 

each file.  This audit check list will be mandated for each client file. 

7. No client files, either closed out or current, are to leave the premises except 

for court purposes.     

8. Information pertaining to client files is not to be shared unless there is a 

Release of Information signed by the client and in the client file.  This 

includes other agencies requesting information as well. 

9. Affidavits need to be reviewed by the Coordinator prior to taking them to the 

designated court.   

10. Upon a client attorneys request for file information, only release the 

information related to the violation.  The request must be submitted with an 

Authorization of Release of Information by the client and that is the duty of 

the attorney to obtain. 

11. The Coordinator will have access to client files at all times, unless the 

Compliance Officer has the file in court.  If Compliance Officers are in court 

or absent, arrangements need to be made so that the files are accessible to the 

supervisor. 

 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF CIBOLA AND THE CITY OF GRANTS REGARDING 

THE ZUNI MOUNTAIN TRAILS—QUARTZ HILL PROJECT  

 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING entered into between the City of Grants 

(“City”) and the County of Cibola (“County”) on the date(s) indicated below, through the 

authority of their respective governing bodies, each a political subdivision of the State of New 

Mexico.   

 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 provides that the board of county commissioners has 

the power to make such orders concerning property belonging to the county as they may deem 

expedient; and, 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-12-2(A) vests the corporate authority of the City in its 

governing body; and,  

 

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2016 the Board of County Commissioners passed Resolution No. 

16-49, affirming their commitment to the Zuni Mountain Trails—Quartz Hill Project (“Project”); 

authorizing application for Recreational Trails Program (RTP) funds or Transportation 

Alternatives Program (TAP) from the New Mexico Department of Transportation (NMDOT) to 

aid in the project; and, confirming the availability of required matching funds and sufficient 

funding for upfront project costs; and, 

 

WHEREAS, NMDOT’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO) has since identified Cibola County as 

being “high risk”, making the county ineligible to receive RTP funds as lead agency; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City is an eligible entity and is willing to act as Lead Agent for the project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the completion of the project is in the best interest of both the 

City and the County. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE the parties hereby agree as follow: 

 

A. Project Description and Background 

 

The Zuni Mountain Trails Project is a USFS-led project to develop miles of single track, non-

motorized trail throughout the Zuni Mountain region in both Cibola and McKinley Counties.  

The project will allow users to access trail systems in both counties, and it will connect USFS 

visitors to many locations within the forest.  The provision of trails will lessen safety concerns 

and conflicts between motorized and non-motorized users to the extent possible.  

 

The project will improve the economic vitality of Cibola County, as well as the City of Grants.  

The trail system will provide year-round access to multiple uses and will provide local entities to 



establish events that contribute to the vitality of the local economies.   

 

 

B. Scope of Responsibilities 

 

1. The City of Grants does hereby: 

 

a. Acknowledge the availability of the required local match of 14.56%; 

b. Acknowledge the availability of funds to pay all costs of the project up front; 

c. Acknowledge the availability of funds to pay any costs that exceed the project amount; 

d. Acknowledge its capability of maintaining the project throughout its useable life;  

e. Confirm that the City Manager of the City of Grants is authorized to enter into a 

Cooperative Project Agreement with the NMDOT for Recreational Trails Program 

projects on behalf of the City, and intends to do so.  The City Manager is also authorized 

to submit additional information as may be required and to act as the official 

representative of the City of Grants throughout this project;  

f. Agrees to consent to, and cooperate with, transferring the role of Lead Agency/Fiscal 

Agent to the County should that become feasible; and, 

g. Assures the NMDOT and the County that it is willing and able to administer all activities 

associated with the project. 

 

 

2.  The County of Cibola does hereby: 

 

a. Agree to be responsible for the local match of 14.56% for the project; 

b. Agree to be responsible for all up-front costs of the project, subject to reimbursement 

from the City of grant funds; 

c. Agrees to be responsible for the payment of costs that exceed the project amount; 

d. Agrees to assume the Lead Agency/Fiscal Agent role from the City should that become 

feasible; 

e. Agrees to maintain the project throughout its useable life; 

f. Authorizes its County Manager to enter into cooperative agreements and generally 

manage the County’s role in the project as required; 

g. Reaffirms its commitment to fulfilling its intentions and responsibilities as stated in 

Resolution No. 16-49, even though it is not the Lead Agency or Fiscal Agent; 

h. Will cooperate with the City and make the City whole should the City be required to 

contribute to the project as a result of its role as Lead Agency/Fiscal Agent. 

 

 

C. Terms. This document will become effective upon approval of both parties and shall remain 

in effect until all responsibilities pursuant to the grant are fulfilled.   

 

D. Strict Accountability of all Receipts and Disbursements. Each party shall be strictly 

accountable for all receipts and disbursements under this agreement. 

 

E. Amendment. This document shall not be altered, changed or amended except by instrument 



in writing executed by the parties. 

 

F. Governing Law. This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico. 

 

G. Liability. Cibola County and the City of Grants shall be liable for its actions according to the 

agreement subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, 

Sections 41-4-1, et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended. Neither party shall be responsible for liability 

incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection the with agreement. Any 

liability incurred by the County and City in connection with this agreement is subject to the 

immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Sections 41-4-1, et seq., NMSA 

1978 as amended.  

 

H. Notices. All notices required to be given to either party by this Memorandum of 

Understanding shall be in writing, and shall be delivered in person, by courier service, or by U.S. 

Mail; either first class, certified, return receipt, postage prepaid as follows: 

 

To the County: Tony Boyd, County Manager, 700 East Roosevelt, Ste. 50, Grants, N.M.  87020 

To the City of Grants: Laura Jaramillo, City Manager, P.O. Box 879, Grants, N.M. 87020 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Understanding 

effective as of the date of approval by both parties. 

 

 

CITY OF GRANTS 
 

 

 

_______________________________________  __________________________ 

Authorized Signatory(s)     Date 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Title    

  

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017.  

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jack Moleres, Chairman 

 

 



 

_______________________________________ 

Robert Armijo, Vice Chair 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Robert Windhorst, Member 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Martha Garcia, Member 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Daniel Torrez, Member 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Michelle Dominguez 

County Clerk 

 

 



 

MUTUAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

WESTERN NEW MEXCO CORRECTIONAL FACILITY and CIBOLA COUNTY 

DETENTION CENTER  

 

WITNESSETH  

WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto maintains personnel and equipment for the preservation 

of peace within its own jurisdiction and areas, and: 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to augment the enforcement of security and control 

available in and to their various establishments, districts, agencies, and municipalities,  

WHEREAS, the land or districts of the parties hereto are within adjacent or contiguous so that 

mutual assistance, in the event of an emergency, as deemed feasible, and,  

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the Western New Mexico Correctional Facility, and local law 

enforcement agencies and of their governing bodies to conclude such agreement wherever 

practicable, and,  

WHEREAS, it is mutually deemed sound, desirable, practicable and beneficial or the parties to 

this agreement to render assistance to one another to maintain safety, security, and control in 

accordance with these terms:  

THEREFORE IT IS AGREED THAT: 

1. Whenever it is deemed advisable by the official of the Western New Mexico Correctional 

Facility to request assistance under the terms of the agreement, he or she is authorized 

to do so, and the Officer of Western New Mexico Correctional Facility shall forthwith 

initiate action under the Western New Mexico Correctional Facility Law Enforcement 

Notification agreement. Specific to the Agreement: 

 

A. Criminal activities will be reported through the New Mexico State Police Department.  

 

 

 

B. In case of a major disturbance, the highest-ranking available person will use the 911 

Operator and request specific resources and relay as much information as available.  



 

C. The 911 Operator will contact all law enforcement agencies. Page 1 of 3 Mutual 

Assistance Agreement Cibola County Detention Center.  

 

D. All Agencies agree a representative will be immediately dispatched to Western New 

Mexico Correctional Facility to assess the situation.  

 

E. Determine the exact mission to be assigned in accordance with the detailed plans and 

procedures of operation, and drawn in accordance with this agreement by the 

technical heads of the agencies involved.  

 

F. Forthwith, dispatch the personnel and equipment requested, or such personnel and 

equipment that can be spared, with complete instructions as to the mission in 

accordance with the terms of this agreement.  

 

G. Information will be available at the Western New Mexico Correctional Facility Incident 

Command Center, located in the Administration Building or other designated location.  

 

2. The rendering of assistance under the terms of this agreement shall not be mandatory. 

The party receiving the request for assistance should immediately notify the requesting 

agency if, for any reason, assistance cannot be rendered.  

 

3. The technical head of the agency requesting assistance shall assume full charge of the 

operations; however, personnel and equipment of the agency rendering assistance shall 

be under the immediate supervision of, and shall be the immediate responsibility of the 

senior official of the agency rendering assistance.  

 

4. The Chief Officers of the agencies of the parties to this agreement are invited and 

encouraged, on a reciprocal basis, to frequently visit each agency’s area of reasonability 

for guided familiarization tours, as feasible, to jointly conduct planning and training 

sessions and/ or drills.  

 

 

 

5. The technical heads of all law enforcement agencies of the parties to this agreement are 

authorized and directed to meet and draft any detailed plans and procedures of 

operations, necessary to effectively implement this agreement. Such plans and 



procedures of operations shall become effective upon ratification by the signatory 

parties.  

 

6. In the event support is specifically requested from and performed by Cibola County 

Detention Center, the New Mexico Corrections Department will reimburse the Cibola 

County Detention Center for the actual cost of providing services to the Western New 

Mexico Correctional Facility. That cost shall be limited to the cost of services in excess of 

any regularly incurred costs of the Department. Reimbursement shall not include 

familiarization tours or training/drills. 

 

1. This agreement shall become effective upon the date hereof and shall remain in full force 

and effect until cancelled by mutual agreement of the parties, hereto, or by written notice 

by one part to the other part giving thirty (30) days written notice of said cancellation.  

 

The New Mexico Corrections Department agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 

Cibola County Detention Center, including but not limited to area law enforcement 

agencies, their officers, agents, employees, elected officials attorneys, predecessors, and 

successors in interest, affiliates and assigns and/or associates, executors, and 

administrators and all other affiliated persons, firms, or corporations, all at the New 

Mexico Corrections Department’s expense, from and against all liens, claims and 

demands, loss, costs, damages, action suits or other proceedings by whomever made, 

including claims for bodily injuries, death and property loss and  damage brought ore 

prosecuted in any manner based upon the actions or omissions of any person or persons 

employed by the New Mexico Corrections Department.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have extended agreement with the State of New 

Mexico on the day and year first above written.  

 

Tony Boyd, Cibola County Manager      Date 

 

 

 Roberta Lucero-Ortega, Warden     Date 













1 

 

CONTRACT NO. DAC__________ 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN DOÑA ANA COUNTY AND  

THE CIBOLA COUNTY 

FOR THE HOUSING OF INMATES 

 

 This Agreement is entered into by and between the Board of County Commissioners of 

Doña Ana County, New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as “Doña Ana”, and the Board of County 

Commissioners of Cibola County, hereinafter referred to as “Cibola”, both political subdivisions 

of the State of New Mexico.  The contracting entities shall be referred to collectively as “the 

Parties”. 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §33-3-13 (1983) provides, “All persons charged with crime 

committed in the state, while awaiting indictment or trial on such charge, shall be incarcerated in 

the county jail of the county wherein such crime is alleged to have been committed or any 

facility operated by agreement between such counties or municipalities”; and 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §33-3-13 (1983) further provides, “such persons may be temporarily 

imprisoned in other places of confinement while being conveyed or awaiting conveyance to the 

jail of the proper county; provided that the sheriff or jail administrator of any county, having the 

custody of anyone charged with the commission of crime, shall be authorized to remove such 

person to another county jail or any other place of safety when in the opinion of the sheriff or jail 

administrator the life of such person or others is in imminent danger; [or] when such person is 

confined in such other jail in consequence of having taken a change of venue to such other 

county”; and 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §33-3-14 (1889) provides, “whenever any prisoner shall be removed 

to another county under the provisions of [NMSA 1978, §33-3-13] then, and in such case, the 

expense of removal and keeping such prisoner shall be paid by the county from which such 

prisoner was so removed”; and  

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §33-3-15 (1955) provides, “Whenever the public welfare or the safe 

custody of a prisoner shall require, any district judge in the state of New Mexico in his discretion 

may order any person charged with the commission of a crime, or any person in the custody of 

…any county in the district of the said judge, to be removed to another county jail, …or to any 

other place of safety, when, in the opinion of the said district judge, it is advisable that such 

person or persons shall be removed for any purpose whatsoever”; and 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §33-3-15 (1955) further provides, “Where a person, on the order of 

any district judge has been placed in … a county jail for safekeeping, the expense incurred by 

said penitentiary or the sheriff of any county for the maintenance of said prisoner, shall be borne 

by the county from which said prisoner has been ordered”; and  

 



2 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §33-3-16 (1984) provides, “In case any county in this state lacks a 

jail or proper place of confinement for its prisoners, the board of county commissioners of that 

county shall make contractual arrangements with other counties, municipalities or independent 

contractors for the incarceration and care of its prisoners, and that jail so designated by any board 

of county commissioners of any county not having a jail or other proper place of confinement 

shall be the legal place of confinement of the prisoners of said county”. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

A. DEFINITIONS 

 

a. “Facility” means the detention center of the receiving county. 

b. “Receiving county” means the county wherein the inmate shall be housed 

pursuant to the terms of this agreement. 

c. “Sending county” means the county wherein the crime of which the inmate is 

accused is alleged to have been committed. 

 

B. SERVICES 

 

1. BASIC SERVICES.  It shall be the responsibility of receiving county to confine and 

supervise adult inmates committed to or in the custody of the sending county at the 

receiving county’s detention facility (hereinafter “Facility”).  The receiving county 

shall provide to such inmates care, including the furnishing of three meals per day; to 

provide for their physical needs; to retain them in safe, supervised custody; to 

maintain proper discipline and control; to make certain that sentences and orders of 

the presiding courts are effectively managed and executed; and otherwise to comply 

with applicable law; including the standards, policies, and procedures applicable to 

the operations of the Facility and the American Correctional Association standards 

common to jails. The receiving county retains the right to refuse the admission of any 

inmate for any reason.  

2. MEDICAL SERVICES.   

 

a. The sending county will not deliver to the Facility inmates who are:    

i. mental patients requiring twenty-four (24) hour care or who are assigned 

to the medical pod; 

ii. have current off-site appointments; 

iii. afflicted with air pathogen diseases or HIV; 

iv. rejected by the receiving county upon initial medical screening. 

 

b. The sending county will: 

i. Upon delivery of an inmate to the Facility, furnish to the Facility a Health 

Status Transfer Form.  If the inmate does not meet qualified conditions, 

the Facility may return the inmate. 



3 

 

ii. Pay any medical expenses incurred, without limitation, including 

medically related transportation or security. 

 

c. The receiving county will: 

i. Provide inmates from the sending county who require removal from the 

Facility for emergency medical services with the same medical care and 

services provided to inmates of the receiving county; 

ii. Contact the sending county for prior written authorization for any inmate 

requiring off-site medical attention in all non-emergency situations using 

an agreed upon Off-Site Healthcare Referral Form. 

iii. Notify the sending county of emergency situations as soon as practicable 

using an agreed upon ER/Hospitalization Reporting Form. 

 

3. TRANSPORTATION. 

 

a. Responsibilities of the Sending County. 

i. Transport inmates of the sending county to the Facility. 

ii. Return inmates to the sending county who are not accepted into the 

Facility. 

 

b. Responsibilities of the Receiving County. 

i. Return inmates to the sending county. 

ii. Transport inmates to Court when requested by the sending county. 

 

4. PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT OF 2003 

a. The Facility shall provide all inmates with a safe and secure environment free 

from the threat of any sexual misconduct to include sexual harassment, sexual 

assault, or sexual abuse.  The Facility shall maintain a policy of zero tolerance of 

all forms of sexual misconduct between inmates, staff, contractors, volunteers, 

and other inmates, and complies with the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 for 

prevention, detention, reporting, and treatment of victims of sexual misconduct. 

 

C. COMPENSATION 

 

1. The sending county shall compensate the receiving county at the rate of sixty-five dollars 

($65.00) per day, per inmate. 

a. A day shall refer to a calendar day of twenty-four (24) hours measured from 

midnight. 

b. A partial day shall be considered a full day. 

c. Medical services may be billed separately. 

d. The sending county shall make payment to the receiving county within thirty (30) 

days of receipt of monthly invoice. 

e. Any charges billed to the sending county, not appropriately charged to the 

sending county, may be deducted from invoice or credit given on the next billing 

period.  A refund will be made if there is no subsequent billing period.  



4 

 

2.  If the Facility’s Jail Management system identifies an inmate as a medium security risk, 

an additional ten ($10.00) per pay per inmate shall be charged.  

3. If the Facility’s Jail Management system identifies an inmate as a maximum-security 

risk, an additional twenty ($20.00) per pay per inmate shall be charged.  

4. The receiving county shall notify the sending county upon intake if the inmate’s 

classification requires additional charge.  If events transpire that elevate the security risk 

of the inmate, the sending county shall be notified upon such determination.  A three (3) 

day grace period shall be granted to allow the sending county time to retrieve the inmate 

or sustain the charge.  

 

D. INSPECTION 

 

1. In Person.  The receiving county agrees to allow reasonable periodic inspections of the 

Facility by sending county personnel.  Findings by the sending county shall be shared 

with the Facility administrator in order to promote improvements to the Facility 

operations or conditions of confinement for inmates of the sending county.  The receiving 

county may postpone such inspection if, in its sole discretion, the receiving county 

determines that such access to the Facility could pose a health or safety risk to personnel 

of either the sending county, the receiving county, or to the inmate population during 

inmate count or when any special operation of the Facility in progress. 

 

2. Audits.  Upon at least five (5) business days written notice and during normal business 

hours, there shall be made available to the sending county for examination all of the 

receiving county’s records with respect to the areas covered by this Agreement.  The 

receiving county shall permit the sending county to audit, examine, and make excerpts or 

transcripts from such records relating to inmates of the sending county and this 

Agreement.   

 

3. Records.  Records shall be maintained by the receiving county in accordance with 

applicable law and matters covered by this Agreement in the areas of housing, medical, 

and payments received.  Records shall be maintained for a period required by federal, 

state, and local regulations and laws.  The sending county shall be responsible, to the 

extent of its negligence, for any and all losses, liabilities, judgments, awards and costs 

arising out of or related to any claim in whole or part that the sending county failed to 

disclose any inmate information in violation of the Freedom of Information Act or the 

Inspection of Public Records Act. 

 

E. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

This Agreement shall become effective upon approval both parties.  The term of this 

Agreement is for one (1) year from the date the last party approved this Agreement (the 

“effective date”).  This Agreement will automatically renew each year for an additional 

year up to a total of four (4) years unless either party gives written notice of its intent to 

terminate the Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties 

hereto upon written notice delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

intended date of termination. By such termination, neither party may nullify obligations 



5 

 

already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of termination.  

Termination will only become effective when the sending county removes its last inmate 

from the Facility and compensates the receiving county for all amounts due and owing 

under this Agreement.  

 

F. PROPERTY/SURPLUS FUNDS/STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY  

 

1. Property.  No property shall be acquired as a result of this Agreement, and it does not 

involve the disposition, division, or distribution of any property.  The disposition of 

records generated by performance of this Agreement shall be decided by the parties upon 

termination. 

 

2. Surplus Funds.  There will be no surplus money as a result of this Agreement as the fees 

billed by the receiving county are for services rendered to the sending county, and the 

fees collected by the receiving county shall be transferred to the receiving county’s 

general fund as required by law. 

 

3. Strict Accountability.  Each party shall be strictly accountable for all receipts and 

disbursements under this Agreement.   

 

G. AMENDMENT 

 

1. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties and supersedes any and all 

other agreements or understandings, oral or written, whether previous to the execution 

hereof or contemporaneous herewith. 

 

2. This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in 

writing executed by the parties. 

 

3. Requested changes in the Services to be performed, including any increase or decrease in 

the amount of the receiving county’s compensation, which are mutually agreed upon by 

and between the parties, shall be incorporated in written amendment(s) to this 

Agreement. 

 

4. All prior written agreements between the parties for the housing of inmates are repealed 

with the approval of this Agreement. 

 

H. SEVERABILITY 

 

If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding will not 

affect the validity or enforceability of any other part of this Agreement as long as the 

remainder of the Agreement is reasonably capable of completion. 

 

I. SUBCONTRACTING 

Services covered by this Agreement may be subcontracted, and the subcontractor shall be 

subject to and adhere to each applicable provision of this Agreement.   



6 

 

 

J. ASSIGNMENT 

 

Neither party shall assign any interest in this Agreement, nor shall it transfer any interest 

in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party hereto. 

 

K. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 

1. Disputes shall be resolved by arbitration in accordance with the rules and procedures of 

the American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered may be 

entered into any court having jurisdiction. 

2. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico.   

3. In the event of litigation, venue shall be in the receiving county. 

 

 

L. LIABILITY 

 

Each party shall be solely responsible for fiscal or other sanctions occasioned as a result 

of its own violation or alleged violation requirements applicable to the performance of 

this Agreement.  Each party shall be liable for its own actions and shall not be 

responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in 

connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred by either party in connection with 

this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort 

Claims Act, §§41-4-1, et. seq., NMSA 1978 as amended. 

 

M. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

Neither the receiving county nor its employees are considered to be employees of the 

sending county for any purpose whatsoever.  The receiving county is considered an 

Independent Contractor with respect to the sending county at all times in the performance 

described herein.  

 

N. APPROPRIATIONS 

 

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement are 

contingent upon the governing body of each party making the appropriations necessary 

for the performance of this Agreement.  

O. NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing and 

shall be delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or 

certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows: 

 

To Doña Ana County:    To County of Cibola:   

 



7 

 

County Manager    County Manager 

845 N Motel Blvd    700 East Roosevelt, Suite 50 

Las Cruces, New Mexico 88007  Grants, NM 87020 

 

* * * 

 

P. SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 

Both parties certify that the persons signing this Agreement on behalf of their county 

government have authority to do so. 

 

APPROVED 

 

 

Doña Ana County 

 

_________________________________  ____________ 

Julia T. Brown, Esq.     Date 

Doña Ana County Manager     

    

 

Cibola County 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________ 

Tony M. Boyd      Date 

Cibola County Manager 













Tony Boyd

From:    Mary Lou Kern
Sent:     Thursday, April 13, 2017 12:09 PM
To:       Managers Affiliate

Cc:       Jonni Valdez- Silva

Subject: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Good Afternoon,

Recently the NMDOT requested the county enter into a lighting maintenance agreement for lighting on an 1- 25 off ramp
in the county. In the past they have always maintained the lights. Have any of you been asked to absorb this
expense? If so have you agreed to do it? If you have, would you mind sharing your agreement? I personally believe the
DOT is simply trying to pass on the expense and liability. We have never been asked us to do this before. Thank you in
advance for your input.

Wary Lou 7(prn
County Manager
Colfax County
PO Box 1498

Raton, NM 87740

575- 445- 2902 fax#

ti
74    -     4

rrrr

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This email including all attachments isfor the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain
confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is
prohibited unless specifically provided under the New Mexico Inspection ofPublic Records Act. Ifyou are
not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of this message

You received this message because you are subscribed to the Google Groups " Managers Affiliate" group.
To unsubscribe from this group and stop receiving emails from it, send an email to
Managers.Affiliate

1



Tony Boyd

From:    Anthony Dimas
Sent:     Thursday, April 13, 2017 12:23 PM
To:       Mary Lou Kern
Cc:

Subject: Ke: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Hi Mary Lou

We have just recently received one for 140 and are evaluating it. However, I did discovery that we currently do have one
in place for St Hwy 491 between McKinley County and NM DOT.

Hope this helps.

Anthony

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 13, 2017, at 12: 11 PM, Mary Lou Kern 0>> wrote:

Good Afternoon,

Recently the NMDOT requested the county enter into a lighting maintenance agreement for lighting on
an 1- 25 off ramp in the county. In the past they have always maintained the lights. Have any of you
been asked to absorb this expense? If so have you agreed to do it? If you have, would you mind sharing
your agreement? I personally believe the DOT is simply trying to pass on the expense and liability. We
have never been asked us to do this before. Thank you in advance for your input.

Mary Lou 2(ern
County Manager
Colfax County
PO Box 1498

Raton, NM 87740

375- 445- 2902 fax#

image001 jpg>
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This email including all attachments isfor the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may
contain confidential andprivileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited unless specifically provided under the New Mexico Inspection of
Public Records Act. Ifyou are not the intended recipient,please contact the sender and
destroy all copies ofthis message

You received this message because you are subscribed to the Google Groups " Managers

Affiliate" group.

1



Tony Boyd

From:    Amber Hamiltor

Sent:     Thursday, April 13, 2017 12: 21 PM
To:       Mary Lou Kern
Cc: Managers Affiliate; Jonni Valdez- Silva

Subject: Re: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Not in Roosevelt to date.

Amber Hamilton

County Manager

Roosevelt County
109 W. First St.

Portales, NM 88130

575. 356. 5307

On Apr 13, 2017, at 12: 09 PM, Mary Lou Kern'    wrote:

Good Afternoon,

Recently the NMDOT requested the county enter into a lighting maintenance agreement for lighting on
an 1- 25 off ramp in the county. In the past they have always maintained the lights. Have any of you
been asked to absorb this expense? If so have you agreed to do it? If you have, would you mind sharing
your agreement? I personally believe the DOT is simply trying to pass on the expense and liability. We
have never been asked us to do this before. Thank you in advance for your input.

Mary Lou ern
County Manager
Colfax County
PO Box 1498

Raton, NM 8774n

575- 445- 2902 fax#

image001.jpg>
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This email including all attachments isfor the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may
contain confidential andprivileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or
distribution is prohibited unless specifically provided under the New Mexico Inspection of
Public Records Act. Ifyou are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and
destroy all copies ofthis message

You received this message because you are subscribed to the Google Groups " Managers

Affiliate" group.
To unsubscribe from this group and stop receiving emails from it, send an email to
Managers.Affiliate+unsubscribe cr nmcounties.org.

1



Tony Boyd

From:    Charlene Webb

Sent:     Thursday, April 13, 2017 2:49 PM
To:       Mary Lou Kern; Managers Affiliate
Cc:       Jonni Valdez- Silva

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Mary Lou,
NMDOT said we had an agreement for the lighting for a ramp off of 1- 10, which we were unaware of.  When we

requested a copy of the agreement, they could not produce one.   To date, we have not been asked to enter into an

agreement for this location.

I agree with your belief that they are passing on expense and liability.

Cika-irLeA e, W e, IyIy

Grant County Manager
P. O. Box 898

Silver City, NM 88062

575) 574- 0073 Fax

Confidentiality Notice: This e- mail, including all attachments is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain
confidential and privileged information, including attorney-client privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of this
message.

From: Mary Lou Kern [ mailto:

Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 12: 09 PM
To: Managers Affiliate< F" Tg>

Cc: Jonni Valdez-Silva

Subject: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Good Afternoon,

Recently the NMDOT requested the county enter into a lighting maintenance agreement for lighting on an 1- 25 off ramp
in the county. In the past they have always maintained the lights. Have any of you been asked to absorb this
expense? If so have you agreed to do it? If you have, would you mind sharing your agreement? I personally believe the
DOT is simply trying to pass on the expense and liability. We have never been asked us to do this before. Thank you in
advance for your input.

1



Tony Boyd

From:    Delilah Walsh s>

Sent:     Thursday, April 13, 2017 4:30 PM
To:       Charlene Webb; Mary Lou Kern; Managers Affiliate
Cc:       Jonni Valdez- Silva

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Hello, Socorro County doesn' t have any agreements in place now but the City of Socorro does pay for all maintenance
and utility expense for lighting at the City exits.

From: Charlene Webb [ mailti Ij

Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 2: 49 PM
To: Mary Lou Kerr nm. th

Cc: Jonni Valdez- Sin

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Mary Lou,
NMDOT said we had an agreement for the lighting for a ramp off of 1- 10, which we were unaware of.  When we

requested a copy of the agreement, they could not produce one.   To date, we have not been asked to enter into an

agreement for this location.

I agree with your belief that they are passing on expense and liability.

at-a4rLeAi ti vv e ryr '

Grant County Manager
P. O. Box 898

Silver City, NM 88062

575) 574- 0073 Fax

Confidentiality Notice: This e- mail, including all attachments is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain
confidential and privileged information, including attorney-client privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of this
message.

From: Mary Lou Kern [ mails

Sent: Thursday, April 13, 26li 12: 09 PM
To: Managers Affiliate<"

Cc: Jonni Valdez- Silva < j -. .       

Subject: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

1



Tony Boyd

From:    Carpenter, Kim   '

Sent:     Monday, April it, 2017 12: 55 PM
To:       Mary Lou Kern; Managers Affiliate
Cc:       Jonni Valdez- Silva

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

San Juan County at one point was assisting in a partnership payment in Shiprock with the Navajo Nation and NM Dot
but cancelled it due to an unsigned agreement. The state has asked for us to take on this and other projects but we

have and will not be willing.

From:

Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 12: 09 PM
Tc

o

Cc: Jonni Valdez- Sil. -

Subject: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Good Afternoon,

Recently the NMDOT requested the county enter into a lighting maintenance agreement for lighting on an 1- 25 off ramp
in the county. In the past they have always maintained the lights. Have any of you been asked to absorb this
expense? If so have you agreed to do it? If you have, would you mind sharing your agreement? I personally believe the

DOT is simply trying to pass on the expense and liability. We have never been asked us to do this before. Thank you in
advance for your input.

Mary Lou 7rn
County Manager
Colfax County
PO Box 1498

Raton, NM 87740

75- n

575-'+ 15- 2902 fax#

CFi v,  ^.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This email including all attachments isfor the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain
confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is
prohibited unless specifically provided under the New Mexico Inspection ofPublic Records Act. Ifyou are
not the intended recipient,please contact the sender and destroy all copies of this message

You received this message because you are subscribed to the Google Groups " Managers Affiliate" group.

1



Tony Boyd

From:

Sent:     Monday, April 17, 2017 1: 05 PM
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Thank you Kim, the DOT is asking that we take care of the exit at the Colorado line Port of Entry, at the top of Raton
pass. I do not for see us entering into any type of agreement.

Mary Lou

From: Carpenter, Kim [ m2

Sent: Monday, April 17, Lu17 12: 55 PM
To: M

Cc: Jon

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

San Juan County at one point was assisting in a partnership payment in Shiprock with the Navajo Nation and NM Dot
but cancelled it due to an unsigned agreement. The state has asked for us to take on this and other projects but we

have and will not be willing.

From: Mary Lou Ker

Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 12: 09 PM
To: Managers Affiliate

Cc: Jonni Valdez-Silva <

Subject: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Good Afternoon,

Recently the NMDOT requested the county enter into a lighting maintenance agreement for lighting on an 1- 25 off ramp
in the county. In the past they have always maintained the lights. Have any of you been asked to absorb this
expense? If so have you agreed to do it? If you have, would you mind sharing your agreement? I personally believe the
DOT is simply trying to pass on the expense and liability. We have never been asked us to do this before. Thank you in
advance for your input.

Mary Lou ern
County Manager
Colfax County
PO Box 1498

Raton, NM 87740

www.co.colfax.nm. us

C--

J/ 5- 445- 2902 fax#

1



Tony Boyd

From:

Sent:     Monday, April 17, 2017 1: 11 PM
To:

Cc:       JO
r-... .,       ...,.....y.._. ......_

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

We have refused several agreement s and they have told the public it was the county s fault you don't have
lighting. They have ask indirectly threatened the status of our coop funds.

On Apr 17, 2017 1: 03 PM, Mary Lou Kerr     -_

Thank you Kim, the DOT is asking that we take care of the exit at the Colorado line Port of Entry, at the top of
Raton pass.  I do not for see us entering into any type of agreement.

Mary Lou

From: Carpenter, Kim
r

Sent: Monday, April 17, 2017 12: 55 PM
To: Mary Lou Kern    -"--
Cc: Jonni Valdez-Silva

Subject: RE: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

San Juan County at one point was assisting in a partnership payment in Shiprock with the Navajo Nation and
NM Dot but cancelled it due to an unsigned agreement.  The state has asked for us to take on this and other

projects but we have and will not be willing.

From: Mary Lou Kern [*---
Sent: Thursday, April 1 2017 12: 09 PM

To: Managers Affilia*'  '' "

Cc: Jonni Valdez-Silva< ivalde--  '

Subject: NMDOT Roadway lighting maintenance agreement

Good Afternoon,

i


	04272017 Regular Meeting
	1 Regular meeting March 23 2017
	2 Special Meeting April 6 2017 - Copy (2) (002)
	3 Sheriff Report
	4 Detention Report
	5 PREA Website Data Collection
	6 Road  NEW COMMISSION MAINTENANCE  FUEL REPORTS
	7 Future Foundations Highlights January - March 2017
	8 No Documentation for this Item - Copy - Copy
	9 JPA CRCC
	10 Compliance Policy File Management
	11 ZMTP
	12 WNMCF2
	13 Range Use w Western
	14 IGA Cibola_DAC Detainees 1.27.17
	15 Santa Fe
	17NMDOT



